
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available upon request..  TTY access number is 711 to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

AGENDA 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

July 20
th

 2011 

7:00 p.m.

 
 

  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

  2-REPORTS 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 

 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB B  Minutes of July 6

th
, 2011 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB C  Region Ten FY-2012 Performance Contract – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

TAB D  Rural Rustic Roads/Routes 675, 636, 709, and 635 [Old Driver Hill Road, Garden Lane, Martin Lane, and  

Cannery Lane] – Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

TAB E  Authorization to submit DCJS grant for the Sheriff’s Office – Pat Groot, Grants Administration 

TAB F  Accept DCJS grant award for Sheriff’s Office – Pat Groot, Grants Administrator 

 

   5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

  None   

 

   6-PUBLIC HEARING  

TAB G  ZMP 11:01 – Fluvanna County – I-1 to A-1, and I-1 to I-1[An ordinance to amend the Fluvanna County  

Zoning Map with respect to 10.339 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, and 3 to rezone 

the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to A-1, Agricultural, General; and 52.859 acres of Tax Map 

12-18-4 and Tax Map 12-17-C to rezone the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to I-1, Industrial, 

Limited.  The affected properties are located off of Route 696 (Deerfield Road), south of Route 

607 (Bybee Road) approximately 0.70 miles east of Route 613 (Bybees Church Road).  The 

properties are located in the Columbia Election District and are within the Zion Crossroads 

Community Planning Area.] – Steven Tugwell, Planner 

 

TAB H  Alcohol Ordinance – proposed ordinance amendment concerning the sale, distribution,  

consumption and possession of alcoholic beverages on county property, with 

certain exceptions – Dwight Godwin, Parks and Recreation Director 

 

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 

TAB I  Resolution from the FUSD Advisory Board for Improvements to the FUSD System – Alan  

Batson, FUSD Advisory Board Chairman 

  

   8-ACTION MATTERS 

TAB J  Radio System Improvements (Narrow Banding) – John Robins, Director of Public Works 

TAB K  Budget Supplement for Jaunt – Donna Shaunesey, Executive Director of JAUNT 

TAB L  Appointment/Fluvanna Transportation Safety Commission – Rivanna District – Mary L. Weaver, Clerk  

to the Board of Supervisors 

TAB M  Appointment/Library Board of Trustees – Rivanna District – Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of  

 Supervisors 

 

   9-OLD BUSINESS 

 

 10-NEW BUSINESS 

 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available upon request..  TTY access number is 711 to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 

 

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 

 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 

   

13-ADJOURN 

 

 
 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  

of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  

one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 

********** 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC HEARING RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

1) PURPOSE 

The purpose of a public hearing is to receive testimony from the public on certain resolutions, ordinances or 

amendments prior to taking action.  A hearing is not a dialogue or debate.  Its express purpose is to receive 

additional facts, comments and opinion on  subject items. 

2) SPEAKERS 

 Speakers should approach the lectern so they may be visible and audible to the Board. 

 Each speaker should clearly state his/her name and address. 

 All comments should be directed to the Board. 

 All questions should be directed to the Chairman.  Members of the Board are not expected to respond to 

questions, and response to questions shall be made at the Chairman's discretion.  Speakers are encouraged to 

contact staff regarding unresolved concerns or to receive additional information. 

 Speakers with questions are encouraged to call County staff prior to the public hearing. 

 Speakers should be brief and avoid repetition of previously presented comments. 

        3) ACTION 

At the conclusion of the public hearing on each item, the Chairman will close the public hearing.  The Board will 

proceed with its deliberation and will act on or formally postpone action on such item prior to proceeding to other 

agenda items.  Further public comment after the public hearing has been closed generally will not be permitted. 

 

 

********** 

ORDER 

 

1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of 

order in preference to all other members. 

 

2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed 

until after the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the 

disorder or the bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 

3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such 

tactics.  The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may 

vote to overrule both. 

 

4. When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order 

the person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 



 

 

MOTION: I move the regular meeting minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of 

Supervisors for Wednesday, July 6
th

, 2011 be adopted. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  July 20
th

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 

minutes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  None 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 1 

 

 

  FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 

July 6
th

, 2011 

2:00 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

Shaun V. Kenney, Vice-Chairman  

    Joe Chesser 

    Donald W. Weaver 

Mozell H. Booker 

Chris S. Fairchild  

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

    Fred Payne, County Attorney 

Barbara Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager 

    Darren K. Coffey, Director of Planning 

    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Chairman Gooch called the meeting of July 6

th
, 2011, to order at 2:00 p.m., in the Circuit 

Courtroom of the New Courts Building in Palmyra, Virginia; and the Pledge of Allegiance was 

recited, after which, Chairman Gooch called for a moment of silence. 

 

REPORTS 

Ms. Karen Kilby, VDOT Programming & Investment Management Director, provided the board 

with an update on the following VDOT projects:  

 Rural Rustic Road Projects – resolutions will be presented to the Board on July 20
th

, 

2011 for Old Drivers Hill Road, Garden Lane, Martin Lane and Cannery Lane, to be rural 

rustic roads. 

 Traffic Study – for Route 15 is underway. 

 Turkeysag Project – LMOA has concerns with traffic configuration, looking at a 

December advertisement. 

 Intersection Rt 15 & Rt 53 Roundabout - $550,000.00 in Revenue Sharing Funds 

received for project. 

 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 

 Water Committee – met with Aqua Virginia and discussed ways to get water and sewer to 

Zion Crossroads. 

 Trash on Roadways – this past month a cleanup was held and 1433 trash bags and other 

miscellaneous items were collected.  The litter grant was used to fund this. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 

 Tom Muir, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in regards to redistricting, please to 

what is best for the county. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in reference to the Capital 

Improvement Plan. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in reference to financial 

consequences. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the first round of public comments. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 

 MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved to approve the consent agenda with corrections to minutes, 

which consisted of: 

 Minutes of June 15
th

, 2011. 

 County Attorney Contract renewal.   

 Resolution Updating the Fluvanna County Pay and Classification Plan 

Mr. Fairchild seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, 

Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  

None. 

 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

Renee Hoover, Finance Director, addressed the Board regarding the accounts payable.  

After some discussion the following motion was made: 

MOTION:  

Mr. Weaver moved that the Accounts Payable from May 25
th

, 2011, through June 

24
th

, 2011, and payroll for the month of May, 2011, in the amount of 

$1,156,530.35, be ratified.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a 

vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Booker, Kenney, Fairchild and Chesser.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

Fund 100 General Fund                    $ 513,749.20 

Fund 105 Social Services       32,508.59 

Fund 120 Recreation          2,011.73 

 Fund 202 Federal Grants          1,229.42  

Fund 302 Capital                  228,397.77 

 Fund 401 Debt              350.00 

Fund 502 Utility (Sewer)         3,702.43 

 Fund 505 Fork Union Sanitary District           8,514.67 

Payroll                               366,066.54 

Total                      $   1,156.530.35 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Ordinance that gives the Board of Supervisors the Authority to Pay a Monetary Bonus to County 

Officers and Employees – Mrs. Barbara Wall-Magee, Human Resources Manager, reviewed with 

the Board the reasons for this ordinance. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of the bonus ordinance 

when the need is justified. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board opposed to the bonus ordinance. 

 Dennis Holder, Kent Store – addressed the Board opposed to the bonus ordinance. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 3 

 

 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Kents Store – addressed the Board opposed to the bonus ordinance. 

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of the bonus ordinance. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

Discussion – Mr. Weaver and Mr. Fairchild expressed their concerns and opposition to this 

request.  Mr. Kenney, Mr. Gooch and Mr. Chesser shared their reasons for supporting for this 

request. 

 

MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance entitled 

“An Ordinance to Amend the Fluvanna county Code by the Addition in Chapter 2 

of an Article 8, Section 2-8, Concerning Payment of Compensation of County 

Officers, Employees and Agents”.   Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, 

with a vote of 4-2.  AYES:  Gooch, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  

Weaver and Fairchild.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

Redistricting to Five Districts – To receive comments on the proposed ordinance amendment to 

Chapter 2, Article 2 of the Fluvanna County Code in Chapter 2, Article 2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, 

and 2-2-6 concerning reapportionment of election districts; creation of certain new districts; and 

the establishment of certain new precincts. 

Mr. Darren Coffey, Director of Planning, reviewed with the Board the five district map that 

was advertised for public hearing. 

Chairman Gooch opened the public hearing. 

 Jerry Passer, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Cliff Altschull, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Barry Bibb, Cunningham District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Adrian Miller, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Sam Patterson, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Marvin Moss – Cunningham District – addressed the Board in support of a five district 

scenario. 

 Elizabeth Franklin, Columbia District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five 

district scenario. 

 Jerry Padget, Columbia District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Len Gardner, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in support of a five district scenario. 

 Bob Leapolt, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

 Frances Shutts, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in regards to not listening to the 

invective and doing what’s best for the county. 

 Tom Payne, Palmyra District – addressed the Board in support of a five district scenario. 

 Norma Hutner, Rivanna District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 4 

 

 

 Janice O’Malley, Fork Union District – addressed the Board in opposition to a five 

district scenario. 

 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – addressed the Board in opposition to a five district 

scenario. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Fred Payne, County Attorney, addressed the legal issues that were brought up during the 

public hearing.  After some extensive discussion the following motion was made: 

MOTION: 

Mrs. Booker moved that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors approve the 

amended redistricting ordinance reapportioning its electoral districts consistent 

with its decennial redistricting mandate.  Further, move to forward these proposed 

changes to the County Attorney for prompt submission to the Department of 

Justice.   Mr. Chesser seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 4-2.  AYES:  

Gooch, Chesser, Booker and Kenney.   NAYS:  Weaver and Fairchild.  ABSENT:  

None.    

 

PRESENTATIONS: 

None 

 

ACTION MATTERS 
Reassessment of Real Property 

Mr. Jay Scudder, County Administrator, addressed the Board in regards to advertising for 

Request for Proposals to conduct the general reassessment, starting no later than October 1, 

2011. 

MOTION: 

Mr. Kenney moved that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to advertise a 

Request for Proposals in order to conduct a reassessment of real property, to be 

effective January 1, 2013.   Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a 

vote of 6-0.  AYES:  Gooch, Weaver, Chesser, Booker, Fairchild and Kenney.   

NAYS:  None.  ABSENT:  None.    

 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 Organizational Sign – Mrs. Booker inquired about the status of a sign for the County 

with all the organizational symbols.   

 Discussion – Mr. Kenney expressed his concern in regards to the current political tone of 

the County. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 

Chairman Gooch opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   

 Dennis Holder, Kents Store – addressed the Board in regards to what a county needs vs. 

wants. 

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Gooch closed the second segment of public 

comments. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 5 

 

 

 

EXTEND MEETING  
MOTION:  

Mr. Chesser moved to extend the Board of Supervisors meeting to 10:00 p.m..  

Mr. Weaver seconded. The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0. AYES: Booker, 

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Weaver and Fairchild. NAYS: None. 

 

RECESS  
The Board recessed at 5:37 p.m. for dinner. 

 

RECONVENE  
The Board reconvened at 6:14 p.m. to begin the retreat. 

 

FIVE-YEAR FORECAST REVIEW 

Mr. Steve Jacobs, Managing Director of the Richmond office and Director of Consulting 

Services for Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, reviewed with the Board the five-year forecast.  

The Board had an extensive discussion on the future budget and expenses.  A work session will 

be held on August 17
th

, 2011 at 3:00p.m., with Mr. Jacobs, to continue discussion of the 

Financial Forecast.  Staff was directed to present a list of mandated items for the Board to 

review, prior to the work session. 

 

REVIEW OF ESTABLISHED VISION & GOALS 
Mr. Steve Williams, TJPDC Executive Director, discussed with the Board the prior and future 

goals for the County.  The following topics were discussed: 

 Communications, Emergency Services 

 Economic Development  

 Work Force Development 

 Education 

 Keeping Tax Rate Affordable (finance & budgeting) 

 Future Needs 

 Affordable Housing 

 Key Infrastructure 

 Rural Preservation 

 

ADJOURN 

MOTION: 

At 9:05 p.m., Mr. Chesser moved to adjourn the meeting of Wednesday, July 6
th

, 

2011.  Mr. Weaver seconded.  The motion carried, with a vote of 6-0.  AYES:  

Chesser, Gooch, Kenney, Booker, Weaver and Fairchild.   NAYS:  None.   

ABSENT: None     

 

 

 

        

John Y. Gooch, Chairman 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 6 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE ADDITION 

IN CHAPTER 2 OF AN ARTICLE 8, SECTION 2-8, CONCERNING PAYMENT OF 

COMPENSATION OF COUNTY OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant to Virginia 

Code Sections 15.2-1500 and -1508, that the County Code be, and it is hereby, amended, in 

Chapter 2, by the addition of an Article 8, Section 2-8, which is hereby enacted as follows:  

 

ARTICLE 8. Compensation of Employees, Officers, Agents 

 

Sec. 2-8. Compensation of county officers, employees and agents.  

 

Except as otherwise provided by law, all officers, employees and agents of the County 

shall receive as compensation for their services such sums as may be appropriated therefore in 

the annual budget as the same may be amended from time to time, in accordance with the terms 

of the pay plan as in effect or with the terms of any contract in the case of persons serving under 

contract with the County. In addition to such compensation, monetary bonuses to county officers 

and employees are authorized and may be paid, from time to time, as authorized by the Board of 

Supervisors. 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 7 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 8 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 9 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 10 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 11 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 12 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 13 

 

 



Board of Supervisors 

Minutes, July 6
th

, 2011 

Page 14 

 

 

 



MOTION:   I move the FY 2012 Performance Contract between Region Ten and the Virginia 

Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services (the Department) be adopted. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

****************************** 
For County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

Comments:   

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 

1



2



MOTION:  I move that the Board of Supervisors approve the attached resolutions declaring 

Old Drivers Hill Road, Garden Lane, Martin Lane, and Cannery Lane to be rural rustic roads, 

and to be improved to be accepted into the Secondary System of State Highways as such.  
 

 

AGENDA   BOARD OF SUPERVISORS        July 20, 2011 

 

SUBJECT:  Resolutions for the Designation of Rural Rustic Roadways 
 

TIMING:  VDOT has requested this action by the County in order to move these projects 

forward and improve them to the rural rustic road standards required for acceptance into the 

state system.   
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  The requested actions are routine and required as part of a 

road’s designation as a rural rustic roadway, which may be upgraded and developed within 

the existing road bed.  Martin Lane and Cannery Lane are scheduled in the Secondary Six 

Year Plan for widening which would require additional right-of-way.  These roads are 

eligible for rural rustic designation and County staff concurs with VDOT that they should be 

designated and upgraded as such.   
 

DISCUSSION:  All four of these roads are currently approved in the VDOT Secondary Six 

Year Plan as projects.  Old Drivers Hill Road and Garden Lane are approved as rural rustic 

road projects and these resolutions are required to move them forward for upgrading to those 

standards.  Martin Lane and Cannery Lane are currently in the Six Year Plan as widening 

projects meaning that VDOT would be seeking additional right-of-way to build them – a 

process that takes significant time and resources.  These two roads have been reviewed by 

VDOT and deemed eligible for the rural rustic program, which means they could be 

upgraded within the existing road bed.  This could be done without any additional right-of-

way which mean a quicker and more cost effective project.  If the Board desires to have these 

roads improved as rural rustic roads rather than widening projects, then the attached 

resolutions will designate them as such and move them forward in the development process.   
 

Staff: Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
 

Attachments:    

(1) Resolutions for a Old Drivers Hill Road, Garden Lane, Martin Lane, and Cannery 

Lane 

(2) Maps showing road locations 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RURAL RUSTIC ROAD PROJECT 

ROUTE 675, OLD DRIVERS HILL ROAD 

 

 

The Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, in regular meeting on the 20th day of July, 

2011, adopted the following:  

RESOLUTION  

WHEREAS, Section 33.1-70.1 of the Code of Virginia, permits the improvement 

and hard surfacing of certain unpaved roads deemed to qualify for designation as a Rural 

Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, any such road must be located in a low-density development area and 

have no more than 1500 vpd; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia (“Board”) 

desires to consider whether Route 675, Old Drivers Hill Road, From: Route 6 To: End of 

State Maintenance should be designated a Rural Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, the Board is unaware of pending development that will significantly 

affect the existing traffic on this road; and  

WHEREAS, the public has been made aware that this road may be paved with 

minimal improvements; and  

WHEREAS, the Board believes that this road should be so designated due 

to its qualifying characteristics; and  

WHEREAS, this road is in the Board’s six-year plan for improvements to the 

secondary system of state highways.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board hereby designates this road a 

Rural Rustic Road, and requests that the District Administrator for the Virginia Department 

of Transportation concur in this designation.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board requests that this road be hard surfaced 

and, to the fullest extent prudent, be improved within the existing right of way and ditch-lines 

to preserve as much as possible the adjacent trees, vegetation, side slopes, and rural rustic 

character along the road in their current state.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be 

forwarded to the District Administrator for the Virginia Department of Transportation. 

 
Recorded Vote _____________________ A Copy Teste:  
Moved By: ________________________ 
Seconded By: _____________________ Signed _______________________________________ 
Yeas: ___________________________ Printed Name __________________________________ 
Nays: ___________________________ Title _________________________________________ 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RURAL RUSTIC ROAD PROJECT 

ROUTE 636, GARDEN LANE 

 

 

The Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, in regular meeting on the 20th, day of July, 

2011, adopted the following:  

RESOLUTION  

WHEREAS, Section 33.1-70.1 of the Code of Virginia, permits the improvement 

and hard surfacing of certain unpaved roads deemed to qualify for designation as a Rural 

Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, any such road must be located in a low-density development area and 

have no more than 1500 vpd; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia (“Board”) 

desires to consider whether Route 636, Garden Lane, From: Route 53 To: End of State 

Maintenance should be designated a Rural Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, the Board is unaware of pending development that will significantly 

affect the existing traffic on this road; and  

WHEREAS, the public has been made aware that this road may be paved with 

minimal improvements; and  

WHEREAS, the Board believes that this road should be so designated due 

to its qualifying characteristics; and  

WHEREAS, this road is in the Board’s six-year plan for improvements to the 

secondary system of state highways.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board hereby designates this road a 

Rural Rustic Road, and requests that the District Administrator for the Virginia Department 

of Transportation concur in this designation.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board requests that this road be hard surfaced 

and, to the fullest extent prudent, be improved within the existing right of way and ditch-lines 

to preserve as much as possible the adjacent trees, vegetation, side slopes, and rural rustic 

character along the road in their current state.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be 

forwarded to the District Administrator for the Virginia Department of Transportation. 

 
Recorded Vote _____________________ A Copy Teste:  
Moved By: ________________________ 
Seconded By: _____________________ Signed _______________________________________ 
Yeas: ___________________________ Printed Name __________________________________ 
Nays: ___________________________ Title _________________________________________ 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RURAL RUSTIC ROAD PROJECT 

ROUTE 709, MARTIN LANE 

 

The Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, in regular meeting on the 20th day of July, 

2011, adopted the following:  

RESOLUTION  

WHEREAS, Section 33.1-70.1 of the Code of Virginia, permits the improvement 

and hard surfacing of certain unpaved roads deemed to qualify for designation as a Rural 

Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, any such road must be located in a low-density development area and 

have no more than 1500 vpd; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia (“Board”) 

desires to consider whether Route 709, Martin Lane, From: Route 600 To: End of State 

Maintenance should be designated a Rural Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, the Board is unaware of pending development that will significantly 

affect the existing traffic on this road; and  

WHEREAS, the public has been made aware that this road may be paved with 

minimal improvements; and  

WHEREAS, the Board believes that this road should be so designated due 

to its qualifying characteristics; and  

WHEREAS, this road is in the Board’s six-year plan for improvements to the 

secondary system of state highways.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board hereby designates this road a 

Rural Rustic Road, and requests that the District Administrator for the Virginia Department 

of Transportation concur in this designation.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board requests that this road be hard surfaced 

and, to the fullest extent prudent, be improved within the existing right of way and ditch-lines 

to preserve as much as possible the adjacent trees, vegetation, side slopes, and rural rustic 

character along the road in their current state.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be 

forwarded to the District Administrator for the Virginia Department of Transportation. 

 
Recorded Vote _____________________ A Copy Teste:  
Moved By: ________________________ 
Seconded By: _____________________ Signed _______________________________________ 
Yeas: ___________________________ Printed Name __________________________________ 
Nays: ___________________________ Title _________________________________________ 

 



FLUVANNA COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

RURAL RUSTIC ROAD PROJECT 

ROUTE 635, CANNERY LANE 

 

 

The Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, in regular meeting on the 20th, day of July, 

2011, adopted the following:  

RESOLUTION  

WHEREAS, Section 33.1-70.1 of the Code of Virginia, permits the improvement 

and hard surfacing of certain unpaved roads deemed to qualify for designation as a Rural 

Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, any such road must be located in a low-density development area and 

have no more than 1500 vpd; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Fluvanna County, Virginia (“Board”) 

desires to consider whether Route 635, Cannery Lane, From: Route 15 To: End of State 

Maintenance should be designated a Rural Rustic Road; and  

WHEREAS, the Board is unaware of pending development that will significantly 

affect the existing traffic on this road; and  

WHEREAS, the public has been made aware that this road may be paved with 

minimal improvements; and  

WHEREAS, the Board believes that this road should be so designated due 

to its qualifying characteristics; and  

WHEREAS, this road is in the Board’s six-year plan for improvements to the 

secondary system of state highways.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board hereby designates this road a 

Rural Rustic Road, and requests that the District Administrator for the Virginia Department 

of Transportation concur in this designation.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board requests that this road be hard surfaced 

and, to the fullest extent prudent, be improved within the existing right of way and ditch-lines 

to preserve as much as possible the adjacent trees, vegetation, side slopes, and rural rustic 

character along the road in their current state.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be 

forwarded to the District Administrator for the Virginia Department of Transportation. 

 
Recorded Vote _____________________ A Copy Teste:  
Moved By: ________________________ 
Seconded By: _____________________ Signed _______________________________________ 
Yeas: ___________________________ Printed Name __________________________________ 
Nays: ___________________________ Title _________________________________________ 

 



James River
Old Drive rs  H ill Road Route 6

Anitoch Road

Town of 
Scottsville

Albemarle County

Buckingham County

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

Rural Rustic Roads
Old Drivers Hill Road

July 20, 2011

Legend
Rural Rustic Roads
Roads
Major Water

Prepared by the Fluvanna County Planning Department
Map for Display Purposes Only
Map Created July 6, 2011 



Martin   Lane

Garden Lane

Route 618

Jefferson D rive

Route 53

Lake Monticello

Ro
ute

 60
0

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

Rural Rustic Roads
Garden Lane & Martin Lane

July 20, 2011

Legend
Rural_Rustic_Roads
Roads
MajorWater

Prepared by the Fluvanna County Planning Department
Map for Display Purposes Only
Map Created July 6, 2011 



0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

Rural Rustic Roads
Cannery Lane

July 20, 2011

Legend
Rural Rustic Roads
Roads
Major Water

Prepared by the Fluvanna County Planning Department
Map for Display Purposes Only
Map Created July 6, 2011 

Cannery Lane

Ro
ute

 15

Central Plains Road

     H
aden Mart in Road

Route 15

Rivann a River



******************************************** 
For County Administrator Use Only 
 
Comments: 
 
 
_______________________________  
County Administrator’s Signature 
 
 1 

MOTION: I move to approve submission of a Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 
application administered by the VA Department of Criminal Justice Services (DCJS) in the 
amount of $35,000. Further I move that the Board of Supervisors authorize acceptance of this 
grant if awarded, authorize the County Administrator to execute any contracts associated with 
the grant, and authorize a supplemental appropriation of up to $31,500 in grant funds and a 
budget transfer of up to $3,500 to revenue and expenditure lines as assigned by the Finance 
Department.  
  
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS July 20, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) application  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve submission and accept grant if awarded 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: This a One-Time Equipment Grant from federal funds with awards not 
to exceed $35,000. The maximum award of $31,500 requires a 10% cash match of $3,500. 
Match up to $3,500 is provided from the 911 budget derived from funding not used because of 
vacant staff positions. CFDA Number for this program will be provided. The grant period is 
October 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012. 
 
TIMING: Application is due by 4:30 PM on July 22, 2011.  
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: Law enforcement systems will be maintained through the purchase of 
computer equipment that will replace computers at end of life that support the criminal records 
system, VCIN, field reporting, investigations, evidence log, Deputy stations CAD stations, and 
administrative stations; in total 21 desktops with software and 6 laptops.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Equipment will be purchased to maintain law enforcement systems in Fluvanna 
County.  
 
Submitted by staff:  Patricia A. Groot, Grants Administrator 
  



******************************************** 
For County Administrator Use Only 
 
Comments: 
 
 
_______________________________  
County Administrator’s Signature 
 
  

MOTION: I move to ratify prior submission of a grant application under the Criminal Information 
Technology Improvement grant program administered by the VA Department of Criminal Justice 
Services (DCJS), and accept the award in the amount of $50,000. Further, I move to authorize 
the County Administrator to execute any contracts associated with the grant; and authorize a 
budget change consisting of a supplemental appropriation of $37,500 in grant funds and a 
budget transfer of $12,500 to revenue and expenditure lines as assigned by the Finance 
Department.  
  
 
AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS July 20, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Criminal Justice Information Technology Improvement grant award  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Ratify prior submission and accept grant award 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: This grant requires a match of $12,500 derived from funding not used 
because of vacant staff positions in the 911 Center. The grant period is July 1, 2011 through 
June 30, 2012. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number is 16.738. 
 
TIMING: Routine.  
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: :  If awarded, the Criminal Information Technology Improvement grant 
will replace the Criminal Records System server which has reached end of life, 2 field laptops 
which have reached end of life, add one new field laptop, add field reporting/researching 
capability to the remaining 7 vehicles not so equipped, add data collection software 
enhancements and add K-9 management software.  
 
DISCUSSION:  Notice of this grant opportunity was received on June 9 after the deadline for 
inclusion in the June 15 Board packet, leaving no mechanism for seeking authorization to 
submit. The grant application was due back to DCJS June 23, prior to the next Board meeting. 
Because the grant program offered an opportunity to increase the time Deputies spend in the 
field and no other funds were obtainable to achieve this goal, the decision was made to pursue 
the grant in the interest of supplementing the limited resources available.  
 
Submitted by staff:  Patricia A. Groot, Grants Administrator 
 
Attachment: DCJS grant award contract 
  

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



  
  
  

  
  
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors               From: Steve Tugwell 
Case Number: ZMP 11:01      District: Columbia 
Tax Map: Tax Map 12, Section 17, Parcel C; and     Date: July 20, 2011                                        
Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, 3, and 4 
   
 
General Information:  This request is to be heard by the Board of Supervisors on 

Wednesday, July 20, 2011 at 7:00 pm in the Circuit Courtroom in 
the Courts Building.   

 
Owner/Applicant:  Fluvanna County 
   
Representative:  Fluvanna County 
 
Requested Action:  To amend the Fluvanna County Zoning Map with respect to 

approximately 63.198 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 17, Parcel C; 
and Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, 3, and 4.  (Attachment 
A)  

 
Location: The affected properties are located off of Route 696 (Deerfield 

Road) on the south of Route 607 (Bybee Road) approximately 0.70 
miles east of Route 613 (Bybees Church Road).    (Attachment B). 

 
Existing Zoning:  I-1, Industrial, Limited 
 
Proposed Zoning: A-1, Agricultural, General, and I-1, Industrial, Limited 
 
Existing Land Use:  Residential and Industrial 
 
Planning Area:                      Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area 
 
Adjacent Land Use:   Adjacent properties are zoned A-1, Agricultural, General to the 

east, west, north, and south, and I-1, Industrial, Limited to the 
north of Tax Map Parcel 12-18-1. 

 
Zoning History:  A site development plan (SDP 98:08) was approved for Tax Map 

12-17-C on August 31, 1998 to construct a 15,000 square foot 
building to be used as a handrail fabrication facility.  A site plan 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA

“Responsive & Responsible Government”

  

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

  11



amendment (SDP 00:01) was approved on April 24, 2000 for an 
expansion of this facility.  

  
Submitted Proffers:   None 
 
Neighborhood Meeting: 
 
Six people were present at the June 8, 2011 Neighborhood meeting, and none of them were in 
opposition to the request.   
 
Technical Review Committee: 
 
At the June 9, 2011 Technical Review Committee meeting, The Fire Department asked what the 
Kerns property is being used for, and stated they had no issues with the request.   
 
The Health Department stated they have no issues with wells or septics, but if there is any 
questioning the future with regard to hazardous waste on the Kerns property, then they will want 
to contact the Department of Environmental Quality.  
  
Statement of Intent:  The Statement of Intent indicates the purpose of the zoning district 

and describes the characteristics of uses generally found within the 
district. 

 
The Statement of Intent for the A-1, Agricultural, General Zoning District is as follows: 
 
“This district covers areas of the country consisting of woodland, farmland, open space, 
mountains, and areas of low density residential development.  The primary objectives of this 
district are to conserve water and other natural resources, reduce soil erosion, protect 
watersheds and reduce hazards from floods; to preserve the rural character of the county; to 
promote existing and future farming and forestry operations; and to promote the retention of 
undisturbed open space.  Limited residential development, and limited commercial and 
industrial uses which are supportive of and directly related to agriculture, forestry, or other 
traditionally rural uses, are to be permitted, but only in a manner consistent with the primary 
objectives of the district.  In particular, the provisions of this district are intended to 
significantly limit conventional and roadside strip development, especially on major arteries 
and commuter routes”. 

 
The Statement of Intent for the I-1, Industrial, Limited Zoning District is as follows: 
 
“The primary purpose of this district is to permit certain light industries.  The limitations on (or  
provisions relating to) height of building, horsepower, heating, flammable liquids or explosives, 
controlling emission of fumes, odors and/or noise, landscaping, and the number of persons  
employed are imposed to protect and foster adjacent residential property while permitting 
certain light industries to locate near a labor supply”. 
 

  22



 
Comprehensive Plan Analysis:   
 
Current Request: 
The details surrounding this rezoning request were brought to the county’s attention on Tuesday, 
April 26, 2011, when staff met with Ms. Donneta McElheny to discuss the current zoning status 
of her property located at 124 Deerfield Road (Tax Map 12-18-1).  County GIS, as well as the 
July 2003, December 2005, and 2008 zoning map books, indicate that this parcel is zoned I-1 
(Industrial, Limited).  However, to date, staff has not been able to find any evidence to reflect  
this property was ever successfully rezoned to I-1, but apparently was designated as such prior to 
current planning staff’s arrival.  Ms. McElheny’s property, as well as two adjoining parcels (Tax 
Map 12-18-2 and 12-18-3) appear to have been rezoned to I-1 absent of the conventional 
rezoning process, and thus their current and primary uses are not compatible with their 
respective zoning classifications.  Staff cannot find any background data to suggest how or why 
these parcels were classified as I-1.  Each of the three (3) parcels are zoned I-1, but the primary 
use of each parcel is single-family residential.  Ms. McElheny, in particular, is seeking to 
complete a sales transaction of her property, but has encountered delays with the buyer’s lender 
due to the uncertainty of the zoning.  Ms. McElheny, and two of her neighbors have therefore 
requested the county initiate this rezoning to correct and clarify the zoning of these three (3) 
parcels (Tax Map 12-18-1, 2, and 3), totaling 10.339 acres from I-1 (Industrial, Limited), to A-1 
(Agricultural, General), to more accurately  reflect their appropriate uses. 
 
Additionally, it is requested that Tax Map 12-18-4, and 12-17-C be rezoned from I-1 (Industrial, 
Limited) to I-1 (Industrial, Limited).  As is the case with the three (3) parcels identified above, 
staff cannot find any evidence that these parcels were officially rezoned to I-1.  The total acreage 
of these two (2) parcels is 52.859.  The property identified as Tax Map 12-17-C was originally 
approved as a metals handrail fabricating facility, however the current use is a corrugated steel 
and wood storage facility as part of a highway contracting business that does work with the 
Virginia Department of Transportation.  This parcel contains a 15,000 square foot building, as 
well as numerous additional buildings used for storage in support of the contracting business.  
There is no product assembly or fabrication performed at this location, it is strictly storage.  All 
materials are transported and installed off-site, typically manifested in the form of transportation 
guardrails.   (Attachment C) 
 
Land Use: 
This property is located in the Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area, and according to the 
2009 Comprehensive Plan, this area is the “county’s primary regional economic development 
area and is targeted as a regional employment center and for primarily mixed-use, mixed-
income development that will also help develop the infrastructure needed for such development, 
as well as diversifying the county’s tax base”.  This Planning Area is conducive to industry due 
to the transportation networks that connect west to Charlottesville and east to Richmond.   
 
Economic Development:  
The 2009 Comprehensive Plan states that the Zion Crossroads area “is the primary commercial 
node, with primarily retail and office uses, but also light industrial and mixed-use, mixed-income 
residential development” base and is an area of concentration of major employers.  The 
Comprehensive Plan considers this an area that is very conducive to further development due to 

  33



its location and proximity to major transportation networks.  This area is one that should be 
zoned for industrial and/or commercial uses and the county should promote economic 
development in this area at, along, and near Route 250 and Route 15. 
 
Planning Commission: 
 
The Planning Commission considered this request at their June 22nd meeting.  Mr. Payne gave a 
detailed overview of the events leading up to this County initiated rezoning application.  During 
the public hearing, three citizens spoke on this application, and all were in support.  Mr. Halstead 
moved to recommend approval, and Mr. Gaines seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-
0.  AYES:  Babbitt, Bibb, Halstead, Gaines, Nichols.  Ms. Tinsley was absent.  
  
Conclusion: 
 
Rezoning these parcels would serve to correct and clarify their zoning, and remove potential 
future confusion with regard to their individual zoning status.  Future rezonings may be 
appropriate within this area since it is located in the Zion Crossroads Community Planning Area.  
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
I move that the Board of Supervisors approve/deny ZMP 11:01, a request to amend the Fluvanna 
County Zoning Map with respect to approximately 63.198 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 18, 
Parcels 1, 2, 3, to rezone the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to A-1, Agricultural, General; 
and Tax Map 12, Section 17, Parcel C, and Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcel 4, to rezone the same 
from I-1, Industrial, Limited to I-1, I-1, Industrial, Limited. 
 
Attachments: 
A – Application and APO letter 
B – Aerial Vicinity Map 
C – Proposed Ordinance 
D – Letters from property owners 
E – TRC comment email from the Health Department 
 
Copy:  File 

  44



5

ATTACHMENT A



6



 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Area Property Owners and Residents 
FROM: Darren Coffey, Director of Community Development 
DATE:  June 2, 2011 
SUBJECT: Neighborhood Meeting – June 8, 2011 – 4:30 P.M. 
 
The following meetings have been scheduled to consider this request: 
 

ZMP 11:01, Fluvanna County – I-1 to A-1, and I-1 to I-1 -  An ordinance to amend the Fluvanna County Zoning 
Map with respect to 10.339 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, and 3 to rezone the same from I-1, 
Industrial, Limited to A-1, Agricultural, General; and 52.859 acres of Tax Map 12-18-4 and Tax Map 12-17-C to 
rezone the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to I-1, Industrial, Limited.  The affected properties are located off of 
Route 696 (Deerfield Road) south of Route 607 (Bybee Road), approximately 0.70 miles east of Route 613 (Bybees 
Church Road).  The properties are located in the Columbia Election District and are within the Zion Crossroads 
Community Planning Area. 

 
Neighborhood Meeting:  The Neighborhood Meeting is scheduled for                
Wednesday, June 8, 2011 beginning at 4:30 p.m. at the County Administrative Building’s Morris Room 
(former Board Room) – Main Level.  This is an informal meeting that will give the applicant, in this case 
the county, the opportunity to present his/her plan, and residents the opportunity to ask questions and 
express their views regarding the application prior to the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors 
public hearings. 
 
Technical Review Committee:  This Committee Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, June 9, 2011 from 
10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. in the Historical Court House of Fluvanna County.  The Committee will review 
the application and send a recommendation to the Planning Commission. 
 
Fluvanna County Planning Commission Public Hearing:  The Planning Commission’s Public Hearing 
is scheduled for Wednesday, June 22, 2011, at 7:00 PM in the Circuit Court Room – Main Level of the 
Fluvanna County Courts Building.  The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing and forward a 
recommendation to the Board of Supervisors.  There will be an opportunity for public comment. 
 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors Public Hearing:  The Fluvanna County Board of Supervisor’s 
Public Hearing is scheduled for Wednesday, July 20, 2011, at 7:00 PM in the Circuit Court Room – Main 
Level of the Fluvanna County Courts Building.  A separate notice will be sent to adjacent property 
owners. 
 
If you have further questions or need additional information, please contact the Fluvanna County Planning 
& Community Development Department at (434) 591-1910. 
 

YOUR NEIGHBORS MAY NOT HAVE RECEIVED THIS MAILING. 
PLEASE SHARE THIS INFORMATION. 

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

“Responsive & Responsible Government”

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA
 

7



8



9



1 Fluvanna County Planning Department Case Number ZMP 11:01

Initiation of ZMP 11:01 (Fluvanna County)

G

PB2-104

LA2B

H

BE
AF

C

LA1
LA2

513-139 513-139
L1 L2

76-449

19

70
148-407

69B
69C

382-75

C1

2

3

4

64
76-449

63
7-94

62

7-154

14-445

2
28-268

2D
318-434

2C
165-572

A
126-8

69
471-542

A

17
PB1-248

18
PB2-70

696

607

D
E

E
R

FIE
LD

ROAD

23092
0

1
9

124

1
5

6
6

1
7

1
0

144

1
5

1
0 1
6

6
2

210

644

629

49

1
7

8
8

2
0

9
3

1
8

1
7

1
6

9
7

1
6

4
9

1
5

8
7

1
6

0
2

W

ork

Tax Map 12-18-1

Tax Map 12-18-2

Tax Map 12-18-3

Tax Map 12-18-4

Tax Map 12-17-C

10

ATTACHMENT B



An Ordinance To Amend The Fluvanna County Zoning Map, With Respect To 10.339 acres of 
Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, and 3 to rezone the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to 
A-1, Agricultural, General; and 52.859 acres of Tax Map 12-18-4 and Tax Map 12-17-C to 
rezone the same from I-1, Industrial, Limited to I-1, Industrial, Limited. 

(ZMP 11:001) 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, pursuant to 

Virginia Code Section 15.2-2285, that the Fluvanna County Zoning Map be, and it is hereby, 
amended, as follows: 

 
That 10.339 acres of Tax Map 12, Section 18, Parcels 1, 2, and 3, be and is hereby, rezoned 
from I-1, Industrial, Limited to A-1, Agricultural, General; and that  52.859 acres of Tax 
Map 12-18-4 and Tax Map 12-17-C, be and is hereby, rezoned  from I-1, Industrial, Limited 
to I-1, Industrial, Limited. 

 
 

11

ATTACHMENT C



12

ATTACHMENT D



13



14



StevenTugwell 

From: Rice, Gary (VDH) [Gary.Rice@vdh.virginia.gov]

Sent: Monday, June 13, 2011 4:29 PM

To: StevenTugwell

Subject: 6/9/11 Site Plan

Page 1 of 1

6/16/2011

Just to follow up on ZMP 11:01.  Fluvanna County I-1 to A-1 and I-1 to I-1  -  The Fluvanna County 
Health Department has no issues to be addressed regarding the affected properties proposed for 
rezoning.  There appear to be no impact on any existing wells or sewage disposal systems. 
  
Gary 

15

ATTACHMENT E



Motion: I move that the Board of Supervisors adopt the ordinance entitled “AN 
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE ADDITION 
IN CHAPTER 14 OF A SECTION 14-4, CONCERNING THE SALE, DISTRIBUTION, 
COMSUMPTION AND POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON COUNTY 
PROPERTY, WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTION”.  Furthermore, I move that the Board 
approve events permitted under this subsection may be located at one or more of the 
following locations and no others, which location shall be specified in the Parks and 
Recreation Facility Rental Agreement: 
 

A. Pleasant Grove (Manor House, Wedding Grounds, Pole Barn, Heritage Trail 
Shelter, and Farmer’s Market Grounds; 

B. Carysbrook Performing Art Center; 
C. Bremo Park Shelter; 
D. Fluvanna County Community Center (Fork Union). 

 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  JULY 20, 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance to amend the Fluvanna County Code 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board adopt the ordinance to allow 
for the sale, distribution, consumption, and possession of alcoholic beverages on 
designated County property. 
 
TIMING: Routine 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS: None.  The adoption of the ordinance simply gives the 
Board the authority to change the County Code.  
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: Board action is required to amend the Fluvanna 
County Code. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 

 The Department of Parks and Recreation received a request from the Fluvanna 
County Extension office requesting approval for a local winery to conduct wine 
tasting and sales at the Fluvanna Farmer’s Market which is located on County 
property. 

 
 On April 6th, the Board received public comments to allow a local winery to 

conduct wine tasting and sales at the Fluvanna Farmer’s Market. 
 

 On April 12th, the Recreation Advisory Board voted to recommend approval to 
the Board of Supervisors to adopt an ordinance to allow alcoholic beverages on 
County property. 

 

1



 On May 18th, staff presented the Board with a presentation to adopt an ordinance 
for the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages on County property.  The 
Board authorized the County Attorney to draft an ordinance for their review. 

 
 On June 1, staff requested the Board authorize staff to advertise for a public 

hearing, an ordinance to amend the Fluvanna County Code, to be heard on July 
20, 2011. 

 
 Staff advertised the public hearing to receive comments on the proposed 

ordinance amendment concerning the sale, distribution, consumption and 
possession of alcoholic beverages on County property, with certain exceptions in 
the Fluvanna Review on the following dates Thursday, July 7th and July 14th, 
2011.   

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY: None 
 
Staff: Dwight Godwin, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Attachments: 
Ordinance 
Public Hearing Advertisement 
 
Copy: 
********************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Jay Scudder, County Administrator 
 
 
 

2



 



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE BY THE 
ADDITION IN CHAPTER 14 OF A SECTION 14-4, CONCERNING THE SALE, 

DISTRIBUTION, CONSUMPTION AND POSSESSION OF ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES ON COUNTY PROPERTY, WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 

pursuant to Virginia Code Section 15.2-1800, that the County Code be, and it is hereby, 
amended, in Chapter 14,  by the addition of a Section 14-4, which is hereby enacted as 
follows: 
 
14-4.  Sale, distribution, consumption and possession of alcoholic beverages 
prohibited on County property; exceptions. 
 
(a) No person shall sell, give away or otherwise distribute; consume, or possess an 
open or previously opened container containing, any alcoholic beverage; or be under the 
influence of an alcoholic beverage, while on any County property. 
(b) Any person violating the provisions of this section shall, in addition, to any other 
penalty, be deemed to be a trespasser on the property on which such violation shall have 
taken place. 
(c) Notwithstanding subsection (a), the sale, distribution, possession and 
consumption of alcohol, by persons of legal age, at certain public parks and recreation 
facilities may be permitted under certain conditions as more particularly set forth 
hereinafter. 
 (1) Beer and/or wine may be sold or otherwise distributed, consumed and 
possessed by persons otherwise permitted by law to possess the same and in accordance 
with the regulations of the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (“ABC”) for the 
following special events: 
  (A) Private events where alcohol is provided at no charge to guests, 
such as wedding receptions, retirement parties, etc., (commonly referred to as 
“banquets”) which are hosted by private individuals; 
  (B) Special events hosted by duly organized, nonprofit corporations 
and associations raising money for athletic, charitable, educational, political, or religious 
purposes; 
  (C) Events (commonly referred to as “tastings”) involving the sale or 
giving of samples for the purpose of educating the consuming public about alcoholic 
beverages being tasted. 
 (2) Each event shall be subject to a Facility Rental Agreement approved by 
the director of Parks and Recreation in a form approved by the county attorney.  Each 
such agreement shall be accompanied by a copy of a current ABC license of a type 
appropriate to the event as well as proof of liability insurance, with the County as 
additional insured, in a form reasonably satisfactory to the county attorney.  In addition to 
other provisions, each such agreement shall require the provision of security controls 
reasonably satisfactory to the director of Parks and Recreation.  Approval of any such 
agreement shall be conditioned upon the payment to the County of a fee reasonably 
calculated to defray the expense of administration of this section not to exceed $1000. 

3



 (3) Events permitted under this subsection may be located at one or more of 
the following locations and no others, which location shall be specified in the Facility 
Rental Agreement: 
  (A) Pleasant Grove (Manor House, Wedding Grounds, Pole Barn, 
Heritage Trail Shelter, Farmer’s Market Grounds); 
  (B) Carysbrook Performing Arts Center; 
  (C) Bremo picnic shelter; 
  (D) Fluvanna County Community Center (Fork Union). 
 (4) Permits for events shall be subject to revocation for material violations of 
this section or of the Facility Rental Agreement or any associated ABC license. 
 
 

4



5



Fork Union Sanitary 

District Future Water 

Supply Plans

Alan Batson

Chairman of the Fork Union 

Sanitary District Advisory Board

1



History

 The water system in Fork Union was 

started in 1967 and built starting in 1968

 The system first used the James River for 

its water supply

 After the system was destroyed by two 

Hurricanes with four years of the system 

start-up, the supply was changed to wells

2



Water Wells in FUSD

 There are two large wells with treatment 
plants along with five smaller ones

 Since the County has been talking about 
supplying water to FUSD the system has 
added one well and reconditioned one of 
the larger wells

 Even with this work the system still has a 
difficult time handling large water draws or 
drought conditions

3



Historic Water Supply
Average Daily Producion

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

D
a
il
y
 P

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 (
g

a
ls

)

Ow ens Omohundro Melton Bremo Morris West Bottom Total

Total

Morris

Omohundro

4



FUSD Advisory Board

 The FUSD Advisory Board has spent 

several months working to develop a plan 

to take action

 The Advisory Board developed a short 

term plan along with a long term plan

 It formalized this plan in a Resolution that 

it is presenting to the Board of Supervisors

5



Short Term Plan

 Redevelop the Omohundro Well

 Identify potential new well sites using a hydro 

geologic survey and drill a new well

 Redevelop the contaminated Carysbrook Well

 Develop a plan and cost estimate to use the 

Creative Interiors Wells

 Obtain grants from the Health Department and 

evaluate the FUSD rates to increase income to 

help pay for this work

6



Long Term Plan

Use the East Coast Transport Water Line 

to supply James River water to the system 

along with building a new surface water 

plant

 Partner with Fluvanna County to go to the 

James River

 Independently develop a water intake and 

treatment plant on the James River

7



  

Resolution by the Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Board 

For the 

Supplementation of the Currently Inadequate Water Supply for the 

Sanitary District 
 

 

At a regularly scheduled meeting of the Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Board 

held on May 24, 2011 at the Fork Union Community Center, the Advisory Board adopted 

the following resolution by way of a unanimous vote. 

 

WHEREAS, the Fork Union Sanitary District has been providing water to customers in 

the Fork Union area for over 40 years using primarily wells; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Fork Union Sanitary District has experienced a drop in production of 

water from one of the two largest wells in the system, the Omohundro well starting in 

2005; and, 

 

WHEREAS, this drop in production of the Omohundro well has put pressure on the 

system to produce an adequate supply during the drier times of the year; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Fork Union Sanitary District  

hereby has developed the following short term and long term plan to supplement the 

water supply for the customers in the Sanitary District: 

 

Short Term Plan 

 Goals: to replace or supplement the existing water well supply for the Sanitary 

District using either new wells, purchasing or leasing existing wells or modifying in 

adequate wells or contaminated wells owned by the Sanitary District.  

 

1. Redevelop the Omohundro well.  

2. Develop a hydro geologic plan for the Sanitary District to identify areas of higher 

probability to drill high production wells.  If possible these wells should be within 

a reasonable distance to the two water treatment plants. 

3. Develop a plan in accordance with Health Department requirements to clean the 

water at the Carysbrook well once used by the Sanitary District. 

4. Develop a plan with a cost estimate to clean and use the water at the Creative 

Interiors facility. 

5. Place an advertisement in the local newspaper to request the use of any private 

high production wells in the Sanitary District. 

 

Any of these approaches should also include an effort to obtain grants and low cost loans. 

 

 

 

 

 

8



  

Long Term Plan 

 Goals: to replace and supplement the existing water well supply for the Sanitary 

District using the James River as the supply source. 

 

1. Develop a plan to go to the James River supplying only water to the Sanitary 

District using raw water purchased from the East Coast Transport, Inc. raw water 

line.  This will require the construction of a new surface water treatment plant. 

2. Develop a plan to go to the James River partnering with Fluvanna County. 

3. Develop a plan to construct a water intake on the James River along with a new 

surface water treatment plant to supply the Sanitary District. 

 

Each of these alternatives will include an effort to obtain grants and low cost loans.   

Additionally, a permit will need to be redeveloped for the withdrawal of water from the 

James River along with a contract with the East Coast Transport, Inc. if this option is 

pursued. 

 

MOREOVER, the Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Board will contract with the 

appropriate professionals to develop the necessary studies, plans and cost estimates so 

that a well developed plan of action can be selected and pursued. 

 

ADOPTED this twenty fourth day of the month of May in the year 2011. 

 

 

       A COPY ATTEST 

 

       
       _________________________ 

       Alan Batson 

       Chairman of the Fork Union 

       Sanitary District Advisory Board 

       Fluvanna County, Virginia 

9



Radio System Compliance and 
Upgrade Recommendations

Radio System 

Committee

July 20, 2011

1



What we are asking for the Board of 
Supervisors to act on tonight:

 Approve the development and advertisement 

of a request for bid to “narrow band” the 

existing radio system to meet the regulator 

deadline of Jan 1, 2013; and,

 Advertise for a  radio design firm to develop 

a request for bid for an improved radio 

system coverage.

2



Background on Narrow Banding

 The Federal Communications Commission 
(FCC) has mandated that all existing radio 
system narrow band their system by January 
1, 2013.

 This reduces the frequency band width that 
is used by each of the four frequencies or 
channels that the County uses currently.

 There will be a slight reduction in coverage 
with this narrow banding.

3



What has to be done to Narrow Band?

 Modify the radio equipment to reduce the band 

widths at the E911 center.

 Modify the radio equipment at each of the towers.

 Modify the equipment that is used by each individual 

deputy, fire member and rescue member along with 

the vehicle equipment;

 Replace some of the older equipment that can not 

be updated with new equipment.

4



How do we get started?

 Add a task to the existing Radio 

Communications Consultant’s contract so 

that they can help the County with the narrow 

banding work.

 After the consultant writes a request for bid 

(RFB), advertise the RFB and select a 

company to narrow band our existing 

system.

5



How much should be budgeted?

 The work by the consultant will be less than 

$20,000.

 The upgrade work is expected to be about 

$200,000.

 A total budget of $220,000 is anticipated.

 This will be taken from the appropriated 

money for the radio system improvements.

6



Can we meet the Regulatory Deadline?

 Based on discussions with our existing radio 

communications maintenance provider, Clear 

Communications, it is expected that we can meet 

this deadline.

 But this will need to be started very soon, or we 

could slip past the deadline which could result in 

FCC fines.

 The use of the existing radio consultant for the work 

to create the RFB will help the timeline.

7



Radio System Improvements

In addition to the compliance with the FCC 
requirements, the existing system needs to 
be improved in order to: 

1. Improve the coverage  of the system over 
the County, and 

2. To add interoperability within the County’s 
systems (School, Public Works, Sheriff, 
Rescue, and Fire) as well as the 
surrounding Counties.

8



Improving Coverage

 The existing system has about 80% coverage on 

paper

 The users in the field feel that the coverage is much 

less

 Coverage within structures is very poor in much of 

the County

 This poor coverage can lead to the possibility of 

loosing contact with a first responder who could be in 

danger within a structure.

9



Interoperability

 The current E911 radio system has the Sheriff’s 
department, fire and rescue on the same frequency 
(VHF)

 The schools and public works are on a different 
system (UHF)

 The surrounding Counties have narrow banded VHF 
and 800 MHz systems

 Emergencies involving the schools or use of other 
mutual aid companies is hindered by the lack of 
ability to easily and efficiently communicate between 
these other agencies

10



Hiring a radio consultant

 A radio consultant will be hired through an 

RFP process since this work will go beyond 

the contract of the existing consultant

 The consultant will develop a plan of action 

to expand the coverage and interoperability

11



Work that will be completed by the 
Radio Consultant

 Request new frequencies to secure room for 

growth in the future

 Design new tower locations using existing 

towers where possible

 Design upgrades to the transmitting and 

receiving capabilities (including trunking)

 Design an interoperability capability into the 

system

12



How much will this cost?

 The only estimates that exist at this time 

were presented to the Board of Supervisors 

earlier this year:

– VHF System about $6,000,000

– UHF System about $8,000,000

13



How long will this take?

 Hiring of the radio consultant will take about 90 to 
120 days

 Design of a system for use in a request for bid will 
take about 180 days

 The Request for bid will take another 60 days

 Approvals of new frequencies will be about 90 to 120 
days

 Construction after approval by the Board will be 
about 16 months

 Total time is estimate to be between 27 to 30 months

14



Compliance with FCC deadlines

 Approve staff to contract with the existing 

radio consultant to develop a request for bid 

for narrow banding the existing system with 

no more than $20,000 budgeted for this 

design work

 The results of any proposal will brought to 

the Board of Supervisors for approval

15



Radio System Improvements

 Direct staff to advertise for a radio consultant 

to design the intended improvements along 

with the request for bids for these 

improvements

 The responses along with the proposed 

contract will be brought back to the Board of 

Supervisors for approval

16



 

Radio Communications Presentation – July 20, 2011 
 

Draft Motion –  

 

I direct staff to add a task order not to exceed $20,000 to the existing radio consultants 

contract to develop a request for bid to narrow band the existing the radio system and 

advertise it and return it to the Board of Supervisors for possible approval. 

 

Additionally, I direct staff to advertise a request for proposal to hire a radio consultant to 

plan, design and help the County implement radio improvements to create a system with 

better coverage and interoperability. 

17



 

 

 

 

MOTION: I move the Board of Supervisors approve a supplemental appropriation of 

$5,000.00 to JAUNT as a transfer from Board Contingency.  The additional funds are 

being allocated to offset the rising fuel costs. 
 

 

AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  July 20
th

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Budget Supplement for JAUNT 

 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend approval of the supplemental appropriation as 

stated above.   

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  Please see attached letter. 

 

Requestor: Donna Shaunesey, JAUNT Executive Director 

 

Attachments:  Letter dated 06/08/2011 

 

Copy: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 







 

 

MOTION: I move to appoint _____________________ to the Fluvanna 

Transportation Safety Commission, with a term to begin immediately, and to terminate 

on June 30
th

 2014. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  July 20
th

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Appointment to Fluvanna Transportation Safety Commission 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Routine 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  Carol Brown’s term is expiring on June 30, 2011.  She does not wish to 

be reappointed. 

  

Applicants who have shown an interest in this appointment are:   

Tom Barnes, currently serving on the Agricultural/Forestal Advisory 

Committee 

Ray C. Weimer 

 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

 

 

Staff:   Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy: Frank Johnstone, Chairman 

 

Enclosure:  Boards and Commissions Applications 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



 

 

MOTION: I move to appoint _____________________ to the Library Board of 

Trustees, Rivanna, with a term to begin immediately and to terminate on June 30
th

 2013. 
 

 

AGENDA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  July 20
th

, 2011 

 

 

SUBJECT: Appointment to Library Board of Trustees 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

TIMING: Current member resigned effective June 1, 2011. 

 

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 

 

DISCUSSION:  William J. Des Rochers is currently serving in on the Library Board of 

Trustees, Rivanna district, and has resigned, effective immediately. 

  

Applicants who have shown an interest in this appointment are:   

 Angela Bergeron 

Claire Van Nierop 

Beatrice Brittain 

 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 

 

 

Staff:   Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Copy: Cindy Hoffman, Librarian 

 

Enclosure:  Boards and Commissions Applications 

 

 

 

 

 

 

************************************** 

County Administrator’s Use Only 

Comments 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Jay Scudder, County Administrator 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Board of Supervisors  

FROM: Crystal Besecker, Budget Analyst  

SUBJECT: Contingency Balance 

DATE: July 14, 2011 

 

The balances for the BOS and grant contingency lines for FY12 are as follows: 

 

Board of Supervisors contingency:   $100,000.00 

 

Grant contingency:      $ 0 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963  · (434) 591-1910  ·  FAX (434) 591-1911  · www.co.fluvanna.va.us 


	Minutes of July 6, 2011
	Region Ten FY 2012 Perormance Contract
	Rural Rustic Roads
	Authorization to submit DCJS Grant for Sheriff's Office
	Motion to accept DCJS Grant for Sheriff's Office
	ZMP 11:01 Ordinance to amend Fluvanna County Zoning Map
	Alcohol Ordinance
	FUSD Future Water Supply Plans 
	Radio System Compliance & Upgrade Recommendations
	Budget Supplement for JAUNT
	Appointment/Fluvanna Trasportation Safety Commission-Rivanna District
	Appointment/Library Board of Trustees-Rivanna District
	Contingency Memo



